
City of Newnan 

Georgia 
 

 

 
CITY HALL 

 
 
 

Board of Zoning 

Appeals 
 

 

 

Agenda Book 
 

 

 

 

 

January 7, 2020    



 

 
 

City of Newnan 

Board of Zoning Appeals 
 

Agenda for January 7, 2020 Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting 
10:00 AM, Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers, City Hall 

 

TAB NUMBER AGENDA CATEGORY / ITEM 

  

 Elect Chairman & Vice Chairman 

TAB #1 Minutes of the December 3, 2019 Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting  

  

TAB #2 Public Hearing – Special Exception Request – 11 Franklin Road:  
Scott Tucker Contractors, Inc.  

  

 Other Business and Comments by Members of Staff 

 Public Comments 

 Adjourn 
 

 
Unless otherwise posted, all Board of Zoning Appeals Meetings 

are held in the: 
Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers, City Hall 
25 LaGrange Street, Newnan, Georgia 30263 

Any questions prior to the meeting 
should be directed to the Planning and Zoning Department. 

Phone:  770-254-2354 
E-mail:  tdunnavant@cityofnewnan.org 

mailto:tdunnavant@cityofnewnan.org


 Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting – 12/03/2019 

Page 1 of 3 
 

   
CITY OF NEWNAN 

Board of Zoning Appeals 
Meeting Minutes  

December 3, 2019  
10:00 a.m. 

 

Board Members in Attendance:  Cliff Smith  Frank Flournoy Sally Hensley 
  Jim McManus  Ken Parker 
   
Board Members Absent:  Larry McWhorter Willie Walton 
      
Others in Attendance:          Tracy Dunnavant, Planning & Zoning Director  
     Dean Smith, Planner 
     Chris Cole, Planner 
     Tina Fronebarger, Administrative Assistant 
     Brad Sears, City Attorney 
                   
CALL TO ORDER 
 

Chairman Smith called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. in the Richard A. Bolin Council Chambers, 
City Hall. 

 
READING OF MINUTES 
 
Chairman Smith asked if everyone reviewed the minutes from the October 1, 2019 meeting.  Flournoy 
motioned to accept the minutes.  McManus seconded the motion. 

 
 MOTION CARRIED (5-0) 

 
Public Hearing – Special Exception & Variance Request – 250 Bullsboro Drive:  Satish Chipulla 
with C4 Bullsboro, Inc. (2019-15) 
 
Chairman Smith opened a public hearing on the requests.  Dean Smith updated the board regarding 
the ordinance change that requires staff give their report prior to the applicant stating their case.  Dean 
Smith presented the three requests:  1) Special Exception use to operate an automotive emissions 
facility inside a proposed gas station/convenience store; 2) Variance request to eliminate a 10-foot 
landscape strip requirement on the northern property line; and, 3) Variance request to reduce the street 
side landscape strip on the southern property line from 15 feet to 10 feet.  Dean Smith provided 
information from the staff report and concluded by recommending approval of all three requests with 
the condition that the City can modify the landscape plan.  Hensley asked if the two current buildings 
will be demolished.  Dean Smith stated yes.    
 
George Harper, Paramount Engineering, came forward representing the applicant and was sworn in by 
Sears. Harper stated the property is oddly shaped with the driveway running through the middle of the 
tract.  He said they would put a 10-foot landscape strip on the north side of the property and 
everywhere else it is required outside of the existing easement.  Harper stated the emissions will be in 
the rear of the building and provided sketches showing the location.  He mentioned they have met with 
GDOT and gave them a plan showing the area to be piped in an effort to eliminate the ditch and make 
the site look nicer.  Harper added they have permission to put 10 feet of landscaping in the right-of-way 
out front as well.  Hensley asked about the trees. Dean Smith stated the city has a requirement of 16 
units per acre, so there will be trees and shrubbery planted. Chairman Smith asked if the site falls 
within the Quality Development Corridor Overlay (QDC).  Dean Smith said yes and added that 
Dunnavant will review it for compliance.  Chairman Smith asked if the QDC required additional 
plantings. Dean Smith stated only the 15-foot strip along the road. Chairman Smith said this is a visible 
area and it seems like what is being proposed will be an improvement.  He asked if there were any 



 Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting – 12/03/2019 

Page 2 of 3 
 

other questions.  Hearing none, he asked if anyone else would like to speak regarding the request.  
Parker, Dean Smith, and Harper discussed the parking requirements.  Chairman Smith asked if the 
entrance would be a right-in and right-out.  Dean Smith said yes.  Chairman Smith asked for a motion. 
 
Hensley motioned to approve the special exception and variances with the staff having authority to 
review and improve the landscape plan, if needed.  The motion was seconded by Flournoy. 
 

MOTION CARRIED (5-0) 
 

Public Hearing – Special Exception Request – A portion of Tax Parcel 087-2005-013:  Lot 3, 
Newnan Crossing Tract 1 – Mercantile Drive – Chuck Ogletree with NPC3, LLC (2019-16) 
 
Chairman Smith opened a public hearing on the special exception request and asked anyone wishing 
to speak to come forward.  Dean Smith stated the special exception request was for a diagnostic 
medical imaging center.  He reviewed the staff report and provided information regarding the area.  
Dean Smith concluded by recommending approval of the request.  Chairman Smith asked if anyone 
else would like to speak. 
 
Chuck Ogletree, South-Tree, came forward and was sworn in by Sears.  He explained the applicant is 
proposing a 10,000 square foot medical office building on the south portion of the six-acre tract facing 
Mercantile Drive.  Ogletree stated he felt it would benefit the community as it is another option to the 
imaging facilities at the hospital.  Chairman Smith asked if anyone else would like to speak.  With no 
one coming forward, he closed the public hearing.   
 
Flournoy motioned to approve the special exception request.  The motion was seconded by Hensley. 
 

MOTION CARRIED (5-0) 
 
Public Hearing – Variance Request – Bullsboro Drive at Ashley Park Drive (Tax Parcel 086 5054 
018):  WP South Acquisitions, LLC (2019-17) 
 
Chairman Smith opened a public hearing on the variance request at Bullsboro Drive and Ashley Park 
Drive.  Chris Cole stated the applicant is requesting a front setback variance (reduction from 50 feet to 
35 feet) and a building height variance (increase from 45 feet to 57 feet) to allow for the construction of 
a multifamily housing development.  Cole reviewed the staff report and advised the Board that the City 
Council will be considering a second reading on the proposed rezoning on December 10th.  He gave an 
overview of the application and concluded by recommending approval contingent upon the Council 
adopting the rezoning ordinance at their December 10th Council meeting.  Dunnavant explained Council 
approved the first reading of the ordinance by a 4-2 count with the Mayor recusing himself.  She said a 
second reading was needed because it was not unanimous, but it would not be a public hearing.  
Dunnavant also reminded the Board that they were not considering the use itself; just the variances.  
Hensley asked if the Planning Commission had recommended the apartments to the City Council.  
Dunnavant stated they split the vote 3-3.  Sears provided history on second readings.   
 
Melissa Griffis with Rosenzweig, Jones, Horne & Griffis came forward representing WP South.  Griffis 
stated Bennett Sands, Tyler Heard, and Jason Brady (buyer’s agent) were present.  She showed the 
portion of the tract that would remain CGN and where the apartments would be located.  Griffis 
explained that Piedmont Hospital is the current owner of the property.  She said they have listed it for 
over 7 years with no luck due to the site challenges.  She added Piedmont did not have a use for the 
property and wanted it off their books.  Griffis discussed the variance requests and mentioned having 
the crosswalks with lights similar to the one on Jackson Street to promote walkability.   
 
Tyler Heard, Wood Properties, was sworn in by Sears.  Heard gave a brief introduction to Wood 
Properties and explained where the site is located.  He mentioned they liked this site due to its 
walkability and close proximity to Ashley Park.  Heard showed the concept plan and stated they are 
building 269 units which is under the 12 units per acre maximum.  He mentioned the site’s challenges 



 Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting – 12/03/2019 

Page 3 of 3 
 

that limit the buildable area including the streams and associated buffer, the sanitary sewer easement, 
the drainage easement, and the high-tension power lines.  Heard discussed the heights associated with 
each building type.  He listed the amenities which include a residence lounge, game room with pool 
table, fitness center, resort style pool, outdoor fireplace, dog park, and outdoor lighting.  Heard 
explained the apartment interiors are “Class A” as they will have granite countertops, stainless steel 
appliances, tile backsplashes and under mounted sinks.  He also stated they would have walking trails, 
outdoor seating/grilling, a bocce ball court and a corn hole area.   
 
McManus asked about the rents.  Heard stated the average rent would be $1,300 and mentioned that a 
deep analysis was conducted as part of the rezoning process.  He said the average person that could 
afford the apartments would make around $45,000, which is about $10,000 less than the average 
salary of a school teacher in Coweta County.  Hensley asked how many bedrooms for the $1,300 
amount.  Heard stated that was the average and said a one bedroom would run around $1,000 and the 
three bedrooms would run around $1,450.  Hensley asked about the bedroom breakdown.  Heard 
stated they had 144 one bedrooms, 115 two bedrooms, and 10 three bedrooms.  Hensley asked if he 
can guarantee that the project will include everything they are promising.  Dunnavant stated the 
amenities, concept plan, and documentation included in the packet are a condition of the rezoning and 
therefore, the development will have to be built to those standards.  Chairman Smith asked if there 
were any other questions or comments.  With none, he asked if anyone else would like to speak to the 
request.  With no one coming forward, he closed the public hearing and asked for a motion. 
 
Parker asked if only one building needs a setback variance, does the Board have to grant a variance 
for all of Ashley Park Drive.  Sears said you could limit it to one building, but cautioned that the site has 
many challenges.  Dean Smith suggested giving some flexibility as building locations tend to move 
around when surveys are conducted.  Griffis mentioned that a condition of the rezoning is consistency 
with the concept plan which already shows the building locations.  She said that they would have to 
come back and amend the zoning if they wanted to change locations.  Chairman Smith asked for a 
motion. 
 
Hensley motioned to approve the height variance contingent upon the rezoning being approved by 
Council at their December 10, 2019, meeting.  McManus seconded the motion. 

 
MOTION CARRIED (5-0) 

 
Parker motioned to approve the variance for the reduction to the front setback contingent upon the 
rezoning being approved by Council at their December 10, 2019 meeting. McManus seconded the 
motion. 

MOTION CARRIED (5-0) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Dean Smith explained there would be a meeting on January 7, 2020.  The Board asked Dunnavant to 
give the annual report to Council in February.  Dunnavant mentioned the Council/Planning Commission 
training will be January 21, 2020 and stated the BZA was welcome to attend, but not required.   
 
ADJOURN 
 
Motion by Hensley, seconded by Parker to adjourn the meeting at 10:46 a.m. 

 
MOTION CARRIED (5-0) 

 
__________________________________________________ 

Chairman Cliff Smith    



3-1  

City of Newnan, Georgia – Board of Zoning Appeals 
 
Date:  January 7, 2020 
 
Application Number: 2020-01 
 
Agenda Item:  Special Exception Request – 11 Franklin Road 
                         
Prepared and Presented by:  Dean Smith, Planner 

 
 
Purpose:  To hear a request for a special exception approval to allow apartments above a 
commercial storefront. 
 
Applicant/Property Owner: Scott Tucker Contractors, Inc. 
     11 Franklin Road 
     Newnan, GA  30263 
 
Zoning: General Commercial District (CGN) and within Building Exterior 

Quality Design Overlay District (QDC) 
 
Present Use: Retail-Hardware Store/Office 
 
Proposed Use:  Retail-Hardware and Residential above retail/commercial use. 
 
Pertinent Regulations:   Article 2, Table 2-B of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
Applicant’s Position:  The following are excerpts from the applicant’s special exception 
application:  “….we would like to develop the second floor of the building at 11 Franklin Road 
above the hardware store for 8 – 10 studio and or one-bedroom apartments….The property 
contains 1.541 acres and is currently zoned CGN….The existing parking is sufficient and buffers 
are in place, as are water and sewer….Convenient location for residential tenants, close to 
shopping, services, college, major arterial road….less intensive use than commercial….will follow 
the conditions in the ordinance and put the requirements in leases….” 
 

 



3-2  

Section 3-73 – Apartments Above Commercial Storefronts, contains several 
restrictions and conditions, including: 

 

• Studio or Efficiency apartments must have a minimum of 500 square feet.  One bedroom 
apartments must have a minimum square footage of 700 square feet.  Applicant’s states 
that they will design studio or one-bedroom apartments.  These apartments will be 
required to meet the ordinance’s minimum square footage requirement. 

 

• Restrictions: 

  
• All window treatments shall be off-white colors with no signs, drawings, or        

photographs incorporated therein.   Nothing shall hang from the outside of the 
windows. 

 
• No outside mailboxes shall be permitted; inside mailboxes or mail slots shall 

be used. 
 

• No  daily  or  weekly  boarding  rooms  shall  be  permitted.    Only  complete 
dwelling units as defined herein may be established. 

 
• Each dwelling unit shall be furnished with a washer and dryer or be located 

no more than 500 feet from a common wash area accessible to residents or a public 
laundromat. 

 

• Each unit must contain a garbage disposal unit. 
  

• Outside building identification numbers shall be provided and not exceed 6 
inches in height. 

 

• No drying of clothes shall be permitted on the outside of any building. 
 

• Entry to the unit or to a hallway serving one or more unit shall be provided 
by  a  stairway  opening  directly  to  the  outside  at  street  level.  All  entry stairways 
shall be enclosed and secured.  For buildings with multiple units, a central common 
hallway conveniently serving all units shall be established. 

 

• All window air conditioning units shall not be visible from any public street.     

• No outdoor cooking shall be permitted. 

• No maintenance, washing, or detailing of vehicles is permitted. 
 

• No recreation, entertainment, public gathering, or placement of furniture shall 
be allowed on the sidewalks adjacent to the building containing the units unless 
permitted by City Council. 

 

• No garage, yard, estate, rummage or other similar sales shall be permitted. 
 

• Landlords shall furnish a City approved trash container and recycling bin for 
each dwelling unit that shall be located with the approval of the Planning and 
Zoning Director. 

 
• A copy of these requirements / restrictions shall be made a part of each lease 

agreement. 
 
 

• Additional Building Design Requirements 
 



3-3  

• Residential areas shall be designed in such a manner as to provide a safe and 
secure environment for residences. This shall include, at a minimum, secured 
common building entrances to residential areas which, for entrances serving six 
or more units, shall open to a heated lobby of a minimum of 10 square feet 
per unit up to 300 square feet. 

 
• Common  residential  building  entrances  shall  be  physically  separated  and 

distinct from commercial or other nonresidential building entrances. 
 

• For buildings with multiple apartment units, a central hallway conveniently 
serving all units shall be established. 

 
• All construction of apartments above commercial storefronts shall comply 

with all building codes governing residential development. 
 
 
 
 
 Issues for Consideration for a Special Exception 
 
In considering a special exception application, the following factors shall be given reasonable 
consideration by the Board of Zoning Appeals.  The applicant shall address all the following in its 
statement of justification or special exception plat unless not applicable, in addition to any other 
standards imposed by this Ordinance:  

 
a. Whether the proposed special exception is consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan.  
b. Whether the proposed special exception will adequately provide for safety 

from fire hazards and have effective measures of fire control. 
c. The level and impact of any noise emanating from the site, including that 

generated by the proposed use, in relation to the uses in the immediate area. 
d. The glare or light that may be generated by the proposed use in relation to 

uses in the immediate area. 
e. The proposed location, lighting and type of signs in relation to the proposed 

use, uses in the area, and the sign requirements of this Ordinance. 
f. The compatibility of the proposed use with other existing or proposed uses 

in the neighborhood, and adjacent parcels. 
g. The location and area footprint with dimensions (all drawn to scale), nature 

and height of existing or proposed buildings, structures, walls, and fences on 
the site and in the neighborhood. 

h. The nature and extent of existing or proposed landscaping, screening and 
buffering on the site and in the neighborhood. 

i. The timing and phasing of the proposed development and the duration of 
the proposed use. 

j. Whether the proposed special exception will result in the preservation or 
destruction, loss or damage of any topographic or physical, natural, scenic, 
archaeological or historic feature of significant importance. 

k. Whether the proposed special exception at the specified location will con-
tribute to or promote the welfare or convenience of the public. 

l. The traffic expected to be generated by the proposed use, the adequacy of 
access roads and the vehicular and pedestrian circulation elements (on and 
off-site) of the proposed use, all in relation to the public's interest in 
pedestrian and vehicular safety and efficient traffic movement. 

m. Whether, in the case of existing structures proposed to be converted to uses 
requiring a special exception, the structures meet all code requirements of 
the City of Newnan. 



3-4  

n. Whether the proposed special exception will be served adequately by essen-
tial public facilities and services. 

o. The effect of the proposed special exception on groundwater supply. 
p. The effect of the proposed special exception on the structural capacity of the 

soils. 
q. Whether the proposed use will facilitate orderly and safe road development 

and transportation. 
r. The effect of the proposed special exception on environmentally sensitive 

land or natural features, wildlife habitat and vegetation, water quality and 
air quality.  

s. Whether the proposed special exception use will provide desirable 
employment and enlarge the tax base by encouraging economic 
development activities consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

t. Whether the proposed special exception considers the needs of agriculture, 
industry, and businesses in future growth. 

u. The effect of the proposed special exception use in enhancing affordable 
shelter opportunities for residents of the City. 

v. The location, character, and size of any outdoor storage. 
w. The proposed use of open space. 
x. The location of any major floodplain and steep slopes. 
y. The location and use of any existing nonconforming uses and structures. 
z. The location and type of any fuel and fuel storage. 
aa. The location and use of any anticipated accessory uses and structures. 
bb. The area of each use; if appropriate. 
cc. The proposed days/hours of operation. 
dd. The location and screening of parking and loading spaces and/or areas. 
ee. The location and nature of any proposed security features and provisions. 
ff. A description of any features above the roof line of any structures. 
gg. The number of employees. 
hh. The location of any existing and/or proposed adequate on and off-site 

infrastructure. 
ii. Any anticipated odors which may be generated by the uses on site. 
jj. Whether the proposed special exception uses sufficient measures to mitigate 

the impact of construction traffic on existing neighborhoods and school 
areas. 

                                                                                                               
Similar Cases:  2006- 60 Jefferson Street apartments above commercial storefront approved. 
 
Recommendation:  The purpose of allowing residential apartments above commercial 
storefronts on a limited and select basis in certain zoning districts is to encourage residential 
uses within these districts to accommodate residents who need easy and direct access to 
their place of work, to create an alternative housing option, to facilitate a housing option 
that is compatible with street level commercial uses with a minimum of disruption to those 
uses, and to provide an added security measure by creating a district that is active 24 
hours a day.  The location is surrounded by a mixture of uses, albeit predominantly commercial, 
it also includes residential and industrial uses. 
 
Staff feels adding apartments to the second floor of the building is a viable use of the property.  
The renovations necessary for the apartments will have to meet specific building codes and will 
require a review of architectural plans by the City’s Building Department.  As of the date of this 
report, staff has received no objections from adjacent property owners.   
 
Staff recommends approval of the special exception request for apartments above the retail 
hardware/commercial use at 11 Franklin Road. 
 
 



3-5  

 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
Application 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 


	01072020-01 BZA Agenda Book Cover.pdf (p.1)
	01072020-02 BZA Agenda Sheet.pdf (p.2)
	01072020-03 BZA MINUTES 12032019.pdf (p.3-5)

